Public Document Pack

Dear Councillor
The next meeting of the ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT will be held at 6.30 pm on
WEDNESDAY, 28 JULY 2021 in the Council Chamber, 13 Church Street, Clitheroe,
BB7 2RA.
I do hope you can be there.
Yours sincerely

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
AGENDA

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS (Pages 3 - 8)
MEETING

3.

DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND NON PECUNIARY
INTERESTS
Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in respect of matters
contained in the agenda.

4.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

ITEMS FOR DECISION
None.
ITEMS FOR INFORMATION
5.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2021/22

(Pages 9 - 14)

Report of Director of Resources enclosed.
6.

AUDIT PLAN - YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2021
Report of Grant Thornton enclosed.

(Pages 15 - 38)

7.

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE
BODIES
None.

8.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
None.

Electronic agendas sent to members of Accounts and Audit – Councillor David
Berryman (Chair), Councillor Susan Bibby, Councillor Robert (Bob) Buller, Councillor
Louise Edge, Councillor Stewart Fletcher, Councillor Jonathan Hill, Councillor Stuart
Hirst, Councillor Richard Newmark, Councillor David Peat, Councillor James (Jim)
Rogerson and Councillor Richard Sherras (Vice-Chair).

Contact: Democratic Services on 01200 414408 or committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk

Agenda Item 2
Minutes of Accounts and Audit
Meeting Date:
Present:

Wednesday, 14 April 2021, starting at 6.30 pm
Councillor R Bennett (Chair)

Councillors:
D Birtwhistle
I Brown
B Buller
L Edge
S Fletcher

J Hill
A Humpheys
R Newmark
D Peat
R Sherras

In attendance: Chief Executive, Director of Resources, Head of Financial Services,
Head of Legal and Democratic Services, Sophia Iqbal and Georgia Jones
The Chairman asked for a minute silence in respect of the death of HRH The Prince
Philip, Duke of Edinburgh.
1123

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence.

1124

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 10 February 2021 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

1125

DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND NON PECUNIARY INTERESTS
There were no declarations of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests.

1126

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation.

1127

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON
The Chief Executive submitted a report seeking committee’s endorsement and
recommendation to Council of the appointment of an Independent Person.
The role had recently been publicised and interviews had taken place. The interview
panel had recommended to committee that they recommend to Council the
appointment of Ms Maggie Nicholson.
There was still one vacant position for an Independent Person that would be
advertised in the new municipal year.
*** RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Endorse and recommend to Council the appointment of Ms Margaret (Maggie)
Nicholson as Independent Person, and
2. Authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to commence
recruitment for one Independent Person in accordance with the arrangements
approved by committee.

Page 3

1128

REVIEW OF CODE OF CONDUCT
The Chief Executive submitted a report for committee to consider adopting a revised
Code of Conduct.
The Local Government Association had developed a new model Code of Conduct in
consultation with representative bodies of councillors and officers of all tiers of local
government, that could be adopted in whole of with local amendments.
Committee were reminded that it is a requirement of the Localism Act 2011 that all
Councils have a Code of Conduct.
It was proposed that the LGA model code be adopted with amendments that made it
specific to Ribble Valley Borough Council, specifically as a Council that operates a
committee system of governance.
Once adopted by Council, it would be publicised through the issue of a press release
and training of all councillors would take place in the new municipal year.
*** RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE
1. Endorse and recommend to Council the adoption of the Code of Conduct as
outlined in the report, and
2. Subject to adoption of the Code of Conduct, authorise the Head of Legal and
Democratic Services to publicise the adoption of the replacement Code of
Conduct.

1129

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report seeking approval of the Internal Audit
Charter for 2021/22.
The document had been fully revised and rewritten and provided evidence that
effective corporate governance arrangements were maintained by the Council in
respect of the internal audit function and complies with the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards.
It also established internal audit’s position within the council, including the nature of
the Head of Audit’s reporting relationship with the Accounts and Audit committee;
authorised access to personnel, records, and physical properties relevant to audit
work; and defined the scope of internal audit activities.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Approve the Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 as outlined in the report.

1130

STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021/22 TO 2023/24
The Director of Resources submitted a report outlining the Strategic Internal Audit
Plan for 2021/22 to 2023/24 for committee’s consideration and approval.
The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations required that the Council “undertake
an adequate and effective internal audit of it’s accounting records and of its system of
internal control in accordance with the proper practices in relation to internal control”.

Page 4

Approval of the plan would demonstrate the council’s commitment to securing
effective systems of governance, risk management and internal control. It also
provided a basis for controlling the work of internal audit and for assessing
performance, as well as ensuring that the resources used by internal audit are
justified and that the chief audit executive (Head of Financial Services) was held to
account for the use of these resources.
Within the strategy, all services had been identified into auditable areas and were
subject to a risk assessment process which resulted in an audit plan that prioritised
resource allocation based on those areas scored as higher risk.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Approve the Strategic Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 to 2023/24 as outlined in the report.
1131

REVIEW OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2020/21
The Director of Resources submitted a report seeking endorsement of the Accounting
Policies to be used in producing the Financial Statements for the council for the
2020/21 financial year.
The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 required local authorities to
prepare their annual financial statement of accounts in accordance with ‘proper
accounting practice’. These policies are the principles, bases, conventions, rules and
practices applied by the local authority that specify how the effects of transactions
and other events are to be reflected in its financial statements.
A review of the Council’s accounting practices had been conducted to ensure it was
in line with the requirements, and no major changes had been identified.
The introduction of the new International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 16
relating to leases had been delayed and would not therefore impact upon reporting for
the forthcoming year-end.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Endorse the use of the policies as outlined in the report, subject to the need for any
further changes required by the External Auditors or identified as needed whilst the
Statement of Accounts are produced.

1132

CLOSURE OF ACCOUNTS TIMETABLE 2020/21
The Director of Resources submitted a report informing committee of the extension to
the statutory deadline for the closure of our accounts that had been made under the
Accounts and Audit (amendment) Regulations 2021. It also informed committee of the
benefits of closing down the accounts in a timely manner, in particular the good
governance aspects, and of the timetable that would be adhered to in order to
achieve the required deadlines.
The Accounts and Audit (amendment) Regulations 2021 had amended the
publication deadlines for draft and final accounts from 1 June and 31 July to 1 August
and 30 September for the next two accounting years, when there would be a review.
The same regulations set out detailed requirements in relation to duties and rights
that have important implications for local authorities in terms of planning to ensure
critical tasks are met and the approval of the accounts carried out by set deadlines.
They also stipulate the various responsibilities for the closure of accounts.

Page 5

The closedown timetable showed that the presentation of the audited statement of
accounts would be received by this committee at its meeting on 29 September 2021
for approval.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Endorse the suggested approach for the closure of the 2020/21 accounts.
1133

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2020/21
The Director of Resources submitted a report for information on the internal audit
progress to the end of March for 2020/21. Work was still ongoing with some progress
being made. The services of Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA) had been engaged
in respect of fundamental systems, and some internally seconded work was still
underway. However, there were no finalised reports in respect of the 2020/21
financial year as yet so members could not be informed of assurance levels attained.
No new red risks had been identified.
As previously reported, progress had been particularly hindered by the continued
vacancy in the role of Principal Auditor. This post was currently being reviewed again
prior to a further attempt to recruit to the position.
The Head of Financial Services reported that MIAA would be carrying out a review of
the costs of the Refuse Vehicle Maintenance Costs that had been cause for concern
with the continued overspend.

1134

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER
The Annual Audit letter was presented by Grant Thornton that summarised the key
findings arising from the work carried out for the year ended 31 March 2020 including
the audit of the financial statements and value for money conclusion.

1135

EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
Grant Thornton presented their audit progress report for year ending March 2021.
Georgia Jones informed committee that initial planning and interim audit work had
taken place in February and March 2021 with the work on the draft financial
statements due to start in July.
She informed committee that the new Code of Audit Practice came into force on 1
April 2020 for the audit years 2020/21 and onwards. The most significant change
under the new code was the introduction of an Auditor’s Annual Report on
arrangements to secure value for money and any associated recommendations which
was a more complex approach from previously done.
The report set out the audit deliverables and the proposed timetable as well as giving
a sector update and details of the new approach to Value for Money.

1136

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies.

1137

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
There were no items under this heading.

Page 6

The meeting closed at 7.06 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Olwen
Heap 01200 414408 olwen.heap@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
INFORMATION

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
meeting date:
title:
submitted by:
principal author:

1

28 JULY 2021
INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2021/22
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
LAWSON ODDIE

PURPOSE
To report to Committee internal audit work progress to the 9 July.
Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities:
 Corporate priorities – the Council seeks to maintain critical financial management and controls,
and provide efficient and effective services.
 Other considerations – the Council has a statutory duty to maintain an adequate and effective
system of internal audit.

2

BACKGROUND
Internal audit ensures that sound internal controls are inherent in all the Council’s systems. All
services are identified into auditable areas and then subjected to a risk assessment process
looking at factors such as financial value and audit experience. A risk score is then calculated for
each area.
An operational audit plan is then produced to prioritise resources allocation based on the risk
score.

3

PROGRESS TO 9 JULY
The full internal audit plan for 2021/22 is attached as Annex 1 alongside progress to date. In
summary resources for the year are detailed below, together with progress to the 9 July:
2020/21
Planned
Days

Audit Area
Fundamental Systems

Actual
Days to
9 June
2021

232

17

Corporate Systems

65

0

Support Systems

57

0

101

17.5

10

0

315

181.5

780

780

Operational
Facilities
Other Items

As you will see from Annex 1 that the ‘Other Items’ category Actual days are largely in respect of
staff training and a post vacancy. However, this also includes work on administering the council’s
insurances and also work conducted in respect of the annual governance review 2020/21.

$y5kgc43d

1 of 5

Page 9

The time allocations above do not take account of work being undertaken by Mersey Internal Audit
Agency (MIAA), at this stage this has notably been on fundamental systems work in respect of
2020/21.
As we continue to suffer from a continued staff vacancy in the role of Principal Auditor, we will
continue to use the services of Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA). This will help ensure
adequate audit coverage in the year, which in turn will allow an audit opinion to be formed at the
end of the financial year.
Unfortunately, it must also be reported to committee that as from 10 July (hence the 9 July
reporting date used in this report) there are now two of the three posts in internal audit that are
vacant, with the Internal Audit Assistant post now being vacant. It is very worrying to have these
vacancies, particularly with the long term vacancy in the Principal Auditor post, not least due to
the pressure this puts on other roles.
The Internal Audit Assistant post is currently being advertised and interviews are due to take place
on 5 August 2021. With regard to the Principal Auditor post, this is currently being reviewed prior
to a further attempt to recruit.
The situation regarding recruitment difficulties for audit roles is a long standing national one and
has certainly been experienced by neighbouring authorities. The situation has also been
exacerbated by the Covid-19 pandemic.
Once again, it is with regret that it must be reported that progress on the internal audit plan is not
as had been hoped at this stage of the year and as previously referred to, additional resources
are being used to help make up for this shortfall.
4

UPDATE ON RED RISKS
All Heads of Services are required to ensure that a review of the risks that fall in their service
areas is undertaken. As members will be aware, risks are graded on a red, amber and green
rating, with any red risk requiring to be reported to CMT and also to this committee.
This requirement is in respect of risks that are scored as red after all mitigating action and controls
have been put in place.
At the time of writing this report there are no net red risks identified for reporting to members. In
respect of Covid-19 this is on the basis that government financial support continues and that other
current and future local and national controls are adhered to.

5

CONCLUSION
Audit coverage is unfortunately lower than that originally planned and as a result additional
external resources have been engaged and will continue whilst needed.
There continues to be difficulty in recruiting to the post of Principal Auditor, but it is hoped to
complete a review of the post soon in order to readvertise. There is also now a further vacancy in
the role of Internal Audit Assistant. This post is currently being advertised and interviews are due
to take place on 5 August 2021.

HEAD OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

AA-21/LO/AC
19 July 2021
$y5kgc43d

2 of 5

Page 10

Annex 1
INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS TO 9 JULY 2021
Total
Planned
Days for
the Year
2021/22

Actual
Days to
9 July
2021

Status as at 9 July
2021

Audit Areas

Financial Systems - required to be
covered annually
25

General Ledger

Not yet started

20

Sundry Debtors

Not yet started

Sundry Creditors (Completion of
2020/21 Audit Plan)

Work completed

20

Sundry Creditors

Not yet started

30

Payroll

Not yet started

Council Tax (Completion of 2020/21
Audit Plan)

Work being finalised

Council Tax

Not yet started

Benefits (Completion of 2020/21 Audit
Plan)

Work completed

40

Benefits

Not yet started

35

Business Rates

Not yet started

15

Cash Receipting

Not yet started

12

Treasury Management

Not yet started

0

0

2

14

35
0

232

1

17 Subtotal

Corporate
20

Business Continuity

Not yet started

20

Civil Emergencies

Not yet started

10

Sustainability

Not yet started

10

Data Protection

Not yet started

Risk Management

Not yet started

5
65

0 Subtotal

Support
5

$y5kgc43d

3 of 5

Customer Services

Page 11

Not yet started

Total
Planned
Days for
the Year
2021/22

Actual
Days to
9 July
2021

Audit Areas

Status as at 9 July
2021

15

Information Technology

Not yet started

10

Health and Safety

Not yet started

3

Inventories

Not yet started

3

Records Management

Not yet started

3

Corporate Communications

Not yet started

3

Printing Services

Not yet started

Procurement

Not yet started

15
57

0 Subtotal

Operational
0
10
10
0
5

Report Issued

Fleet and Plant Management

Not yet started

11 Car Parking
3 Planning (Abortive work from 2020/21)

Report being
prepared
Work not continued
as not in 2021/22
plan
Not yet started

Outdoor Facilities (includes
Concessions)

Not yet started

7

Property Maintenance

Not yet started

7

Tourism and Events

Not yet started

7

Healthy Lifestyles and Sports
Development

Not yet started

5

Grounds Maintenance

Not yet started

5

Amenity Cleansing

Not yet started

5

Arts Development

Not yet started

Environmental Health

Not yet started

5

Economic and Community
Development

Not yet started

5

Development Policy

Not yet started

Grants Payable and Receivable

Not yet started

10

10

4 of 5

Building Control (Completion of
2020/21 Audit Plan)

CCTV

10

$y5kgc43d

3.5

Page 12

Total
Planned
Days for
the Year
2021/22
101

Actual
Days to
9 July
2021

Status as at 9 July
2021

Audit Areas

17.5 Subtotal

Facilities
10
10

465

Ribblesdale Pool

Not yet started

0 Subtotal

34.5 TOTAL FOR AUDIT WORK

Other Items
25
15

Not yet started

3 Risk Management System

25

23 Corporate Governance Review

40

23 Insurance Administration

4
100

2 Controlled Stationery
28 Training

36

8 Bank Holidays

70

14.5 Annual Leave

0

0

8 Working on Elections

72 Post Vacancy

315

181.5 Subtotal for Other Items

780

216 OVERALL TOTAL DAYS

$y5kgc43d

5 of 5

Contingencies

Page 13

Continuous and
ongoing work
Completion of the
review for the
2020/21 Financial
Year
Continuous and
ongoing work
Continuous and
ongoing work
Professional
qualification training

Unbudgeted work on
elections
Principal Auditor post
Internal Audit
Assistant post is
vacant from 10 July
2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 15

Agenda Item 6

Public

Page 16

Public

•

•

•

Page 17

•

•

Public

•
•
•

Page 18
•

•

Public

•
•

Page 19

•
•

•

Public

•

Page 20

•

Public

•

•
•

•
•

Page 21

•
•

Public

•

•
•
•
•

Page 22

•

•

.

Public

•
•

Page 23

•
•
•
•

•
•

•

Public

•

•

Page 24

•
•
•

•

•

Public

Page 25
•
•

•
•
•
•

Public

•

Page 26

•
•

•

•

•
–

–
–
–
•

Public

Page 27

Public

•

Page 28
•

•

Public

Page 29

Public

Page 30
•

•
•

•
•

16

Public

.

•

•

Page 31

•

Ethical Standard (revised
2019)

Public

.

Page 32

Public

Page 33

Public

Page 34

Public

Page 35

Public

Page 36

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

